Tender Brief for the Provision of 

Audio Visual Services

at the National Army Museum
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1. Introduction

The National Army Museum wishes to engage with a suitably experienced audio-visual company/companies to provide a broad spectrum of audio-visual activities to supplement their in-house capabilities and create impactful in-person, hybrid, and virtual events in the form of a call-off contract.  The expected tasks mainly relate to audio-visual coverage of the Museums public programme.  In addition to National Army Museum Trading Limited wishes to engage the same supplier(s) to provide in person and hybrid delivery of meetings and conferences on behalf of the Museum to clients hosting events at the National Army Museum.

2. Scope/Services

The National Army Museum delivers a varied programme of events and activities both in person and online.  The services will be required across Museum Divisions and includes:

· Public Programme 
· Research
· Learning
· Commercial
· Partnerships

The appointed supplier(s) will provide hands on assistance with the production and delivery of the services outlined and will provide the appropriate personnel and where necessary equipment to assist in the delivery of the services. 

The service will include but are not limited to the following event formats:

· Interview
· Lecture
· In-Conversation
· Panel Discussion
· Training Session
· Screening

For each type of service there be a requirement for the event to be delivered either:

· In Person
· Online
· Hybrid

The delivery of each service may include:

· Introductions
· Presentations (powerpoint)
· Q&A 
· Playing audio/visual files
· Streaming in external speaker(s) to an in person audience
· Audio and visual recording of live performance
 
Spaces and Equipment

There are three main areas where these activities will take place (floor plans can be found at Annex E):

· Museum Atrium

Situated on the Lower Ground Floor, in the heart of the Museum this large space can seat up to 150 PAX theatre style.

· Foyle Centre
	
Situated on the Lower Ground Floor Comprising of 2 private spaces, Foyle 1, and Foyle 2 these spaces can be configured to create up to 4 spaces with the use of soundproof partitions.

Foyle 1 can be configured to form 1 large space, seating 120 PAX theatre style or 2 smaller spaces (Foyle 1.1 and 1.2).  When in use as Foyle 1 or 1.1 the space can make use of the in-house motorised projector screen, ceiling mounted projector, PA system with ceiling speakers, lectern, and lapel microphones, as well as the facilities for Airplay, Apple TV, and Chromecast.

Foyle 2 can be configured to form 1 large space, seating 200 PAX theatre style (with some restricted views due to pillar placement) or 2 smaller spaces of 100 PAX (Foyle 2.1 and 2.2) When in use as Foyle 2 the space can make use of the in-house, PA system with ceiling speakers, lectern, and lapel microphones.  In addition to this when use as Foyle 2.1 or 2.1 the space can make use of the in-house motorised projector screen, ceiling mounted projector, Airplay, Apple TV, and Chromecast.

· Boardroom

Situated on the 4th floor of the Museum, this private space seats up to 50 PAX theatre style.  The space is equipped with an 84” LCD high-definition screen, wall inputs for HDMI/VGA/Audio, ceiling speakers for multimedia presentations and can also make use of Airplay, Apple TV, and Chromecast.

3. Frequency of Services and Contract Length

The intention is that on average, there will be a requirement to deliver at least one of the above services listed on at least one day a month.  

The contract will have a term of 2 years with an option to extend by 1 year.

4. Project Team

The Client is the Council of the National Army Museum and the National Army Museum Trading Limited.  It has established a project team to bring this forward:
The Project Team will consist of:

· Dawn Watkins – Assistant Director (Enterprise)

· Melanie Marsh – Head of Programme

· Kathryn Haggerston – Head of Commercial

· Isobel MacAuslan – Public Programme Manager

The above group will be supported as required by other members of NAM staff.

5. Tender Process

The tender process will be in accordance with the NAM Financial Procedures and an open tender process advertised on NAM website and Government Tender website.

6. Tender Timetable

Issue of Tender :			19 December 2022
Tender return:  			12:00pm 13 January 2023 
Interviews (if required): 		16 January 2023
Appointment:  			w/c 23 January 2023

Prospective tenderers will note:  The first events to take place as part of this “call off” contract will be:

· 9 February 2023
· 23 February 2023

7. Tender Submission

As this will be a form of “call off” contract potential tenderers will be required to provide a cost estimate for 2 sample events, found at Annex D, to allow the Museum to assess across all tender submissions.  All equipment and staffing should be included and listed as separate lines.  Site visits can be arranged in order that tenderers can get a better appreciation of the services required.

In addition to the cost estimate please provide details of 3 recent projects that are relevant to this tender.  For each project, include a description of the project, your role, client, budget and project dates. 

Tenders shall comprise of two hard copies of the complete submission to include:

· The Completed Form of Tender (Annex A);

· Certificate of Bona-Fide Tender (Annex B);

· Contractor Qualification Questionnaire (Annex C);

· Cost Estimate (Annex D)


Copies of all up to date Employers, Public Liability and Professional Indemnity and other relevant insurances – the value of EI and PL should be up to £5million.

Please ensure all necessary tender documents, and annexes are completed, signed and dated.

All tender documents are to be addressed to - NAM Secretariat, National Army Museum, Royal Hospital Road, Chelsea, SW3 4HT and annotated with “TENDER DOCUMENTS NOT TO BE OPENED BEFORE 12:00pm on 13 January 2023.  On no account are the tender documents to be passed to the requesting department before the tender board date.  Two hard copies should be accompanied by an electronic copy sent to tenders@nam.ac.uk and annotated as above.

Tenders are to remain open for acceptance for a period of 30 days

Note: Emailed and other electronic versions of completed tender are not to be submitted to the NAM prior to the scheduled opening date.  Any tender received in this way will be returned and the tender deemed as inadmissible.  Any submission received after the deadline will be disqualified

8. Contract Award Criteria

The Tender Board will comprise the NAM Project Team and other nominated individuals.

Tenders will be assessed on the following criteria:

	Fee
	50%

	Qualifications and Experience 
	20%

	Resourcing including timings to carry out work
	30%




9. References

References – tenderers must provide names and contact details of three recent similar contracts who could be approached to provide references.

10.  Enquiries

All enquiries arising from this Invitation to Tender must be submitted in writing via email to:
dwatkins@nam.ac.uk

Where an enquiry has a potential bearing on the tender price it will be divulged to other tenderers via the Contract Finder website.  Tenderers should therefore ensure that they check regularly for any updates.


11.  Copyright and Intellectual Property

After the award of the tender, the copyright of any materials, or assets created for/during this project and in consultation with the Museum will remain the copyright of NAM.  The producer may ask NAM for permission to use these assets, and 'this will not be unreasonably withheld'.

12. Other Information

The successful tenderer is advised that at no time do they become an employee of the NAM. They will, however, be expected to comply with the Museum's internal policies and procedures, including compliance in the areas of Equality & Diversity, Health, Safety and Environmental, Ethics and Data Protection (including Freedom of Information requests) and Confidentiality.  Copies of all the Museums policies will be provided on commencement of the tender.

The successful tender will be expected to sign the Museum’s standard contract for the works.  Tenderers will note that the Museum’s contract will be legal document on which the work will be awarded.  This will be made available to the successful tenderer.

Annexes

· Annex A – Form of Tender
· Annex B – Certificate of Bona-Fide Tender
· Annex C – Contractor Qualification Questionnaire
· Annex D – Sample Event Quotations
· Annex E - Floorplans

ANNEX A – FORM OF TENDER

Tender for: 	Audio Visual Services at the National Army Museum

To: 		The Council of the National Army Museum and National Army Museum Trading Limited

Sirs,

I/We the undersigned, having examined the enclosed tender documents and Appendices, do hereby offer to execute and complete in accordance with the said documents the works described therein:

For the sum as listed in the attached document:

Tenderer Reference: 

I/We hereby affirm our agreement to enter into a contract with the Council of the National Army Museum and National Army Museum Trading Limited for the due performance of the Works in the form described by the above said documents.

I/We have completed the Certificate of Bona-Fide Tender included in this document

I/We understand that the Trustees are not bound to accept the lowest or any tender which may be received nor or responsible for any cost incurred in the preparation of any tender

I/We declare that this offer is to remain open for acceptance for a period of thirty days from the date fixed for the receipt of tenders

Signed: ____________________________________________________

In the capacity of 

Duly authorised to sign the tender on behalf of: 

Date: 















ANNEX B – CERTIFICATE OF BONA-FIDE TENDER

Tender for: 	Audio Visual Services for the National Army Museum and National Army Museum Trading Limited

I/We certify that this is a bona-fide tender and that I/we have not fixed or adjusted the amount thereof by or under in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other person.

I/We also certify that I/We have not done and I/We undertake that I/we will not do at any time any of the following acts:

a. Communicate to a person other than the person calling for these tenders the amount or approximate amount of the proposed tender except where the disclosure, in confidence, of such amount(s) was necessary to obtain insurance premium quotations required for the preparation of the tender.

b. Enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other person that he shall refrain from tendering or as to the amount of any tender to be submitted;

c. Offer or pay or give or agree to pay or give any sum of money or valuable consideration directly or indirectly to any person for doing or having done or causing or have caused to be done in relation to any other tender or proposed tender for the said work any act or thing of the sort described above.

In this certificate the word “person” includes any person and any body, association, corporate or un-incorporated; and “any agreement” includes such transaction, formal or informal, and whether legally binding or not.

Signed: ____________________________________________________

In the capacity of 

Duly authorised to sign the tender on behalf of: 

Date: 
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ANNEX C: - CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE

Please answer all questions, and sign the declaration at end of the questionnaire.

1. If there is insufficient space for your response, please attach and sign any additional pages.

2. Please answer the questions specifically for your business NOT for the group if you are part of a group of companies.

3. Please note the term business refers to: Sole proprietor, partnership, limited liability partnership, incorporated company, co-operative, or voluntary organisation as appropriate.

4. This document is confidential and all information provided will be for the purpose of supplier management only and kept solely within the National Army Museum.  The information supplied by the contractor/supplier will be used to assess the contractor’s fitness for any work being tendered.

Supply of this document to an applicant does not imply or guarantee that the recipient will be awarded works on a project.

A 	ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

A1 Trading Name of Business


A2 Registered Name of Business (if different from A1)


A3 How long has the business been trading?


A4 Main address for correspondence


A5 Registered Office address (if different from above)


A6 Name of person applying on behalf of the business.


A7 Position or title in the business of the person named in A6


A8 Telephone Number of the person named in A6


A9 Facsimile Number of the person named in A6


A10 E-Mail address of the person named in A6


A11 Is the business a sole trader, partnership, private limited company, public limited company, limited liability partnership, co-operative, voluntary organisation or other? (Please specify)


A12 Please provide the business’ VAT Registration Number


A13 If applicable, please state the number and date, and provide a copy of the Certificate of Incorporation or Registration (and Change of Name) under the Companies Acts or Industrial and Provident Societies Acts in the UK or the professional or trade register of the EU member state in which the company is established.

Applicable/Not applicable:


Certificate Number:


Date:

A14 Is the business part of a group?

Yes/No:


A15 If part of a group, please describe the group structure, (please provide an organisation chart if appropriate) and give names of the other Divisions or Subsidiary Companies in the Group.

Attached/Not Attached:


B 	BUSINESS PROBITY

B1 a) Being a company, no resolution has been passed or Order of the Court made for the company’s winding up otherwise than for the purposes of bona fide reconstruction or amalgamation, or receiver, or manager, or administrator on behalf of a creditor appointed in respect of the company’s business or any part thereof, or is not the subject or proceedings for any of the above procedures, or is not the subject of similar procedures under the law of any other state.

Not applicable / confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


b) Being an individual, you are not bankrupt, you have not had a receiving order or administration order made against you, or made a composition or arrangement or trust deed with or for the benefit of your creditors, or made any conveyance or assignment for sequestration of your estate or appear to be unable to pay or to have no reasonable prospect of being able to pay a debt within the meaning of the Insolvency Act or any similar procedure under the law of any EU member state.

Not applicable / confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


B2 Please confirm that no Directors, Partners, Associates or the Company Secretary have been involved in any company, which has been liquidated or gone into receivership.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


B3 Please confirm that none of the Directors, Partners, Associates or the Company Secretary has been convicted of a criminal offence relating to the conduct of their business or profession.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


B4 Please confirm that neither the company nor any of the Directors, Partners, Associates or Company Secretary has committed an act of grave misconduct in the course of their business or profession.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


B5 List the full names of every Director, Partner, Associate and the Company Secretary and indicate their title.

Attached / Not Attached:

B6 Please confirm that all obligations relating to the payment of taxes under the law of any part of the United Kingdom or the EU member state in which the company is established have been fulfilled.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:

B7 Please confirm that all obligations relating to the payment of social security contributions under the law of any part of the United Kingdom or EU member state in which the company is established have been fulfilled.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


B8 Please confirm that you understand that serious misrepresentation in the provision of information will be grounds for disqualification from the tender process.

Confirmed / not confirmed:

C 	ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL STANDING

C1 If the business is a member of a group of companies, please give the name and address of the ultimate holding company.


C2 Would the ultimate holding company be prepared to guarantee your contract performance as its subsidiary?

Yes / No:


C3 Please state the name and title of the person in the business responsible for financial matters:


C4 Please confirm that we may obtain references from your bankers and provide their name and address:

Confirmed / not confirmed:

Details:


C5 Have you been trading for 3 years or more? If no go to C7, if yes, please attach copies of your audited Accounts for the past three years, to include:

· Balance sheet
· Profit and Loss Account
· Full notes to the Accounts
· Director’s Report
· Auditor’s Report
· Statement of Turnover in respect of the services to be provided under this contract.


NB: Where no accounts are audited, signed copies of the Partnerships accountant should be submitted.

Details attached – Yes / No:


C6 If the Accounts you are submitting are for a year ended more than 10 months, ago. Please confirm that the business is still trading and provide a statement of turnover since the last set of published accounts:

Not applicable / applicable:

Details attached – Yes / No:

C7 Has your business ever had a contract terminated for breech under the terms of the contract? (If yes, please provide details)

Not applicable / applicable:

Details attached – Yes / No:

C10 Has your business ever not had a contract renewed for failure to perform to the terms of the contract? (If yes, please provide details)

Not applicable / applicable:

Details attached – Yes / No:

C11 Please give the Name of the Insurer, Policy Number, extent of cover, Expiry date and provide a copy of your Employer’s Liability Insurance Policy or other evidence that you have such insurance.

C12 Please give the Name of the Insurer, Policy Number, extent of cover, expiry date and provide a copy of your Employers/Public/Product Liability (Third Party) Insurance Policy or other evidence that you have such insurance.

C13 Please give the Name of the Insurer, Policy Number, extent of cover, Expiry date and provide a copy of your Professional Indemnity Insurance Policy or other evidence that you have such insurance

D 	COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES LEGISLATION

D1 Is it your policy as an employer to comply with your statutory obligations under the Equality Act 2010 or similar legislation of the EU member state in which applicant is established) and, accordingly, your practice not to treat one group of people less favourably than others because of their sex, colour, race, nationality or ethnic origins or disability in relation to decisions to recruit, train or promote employees?

Yes/No:

D2 In the last three years has any finding of unlawful racial, sexual or, disabilities discrimination been made against your organisation by any court or Employment tribunal?

Yes/No:


D3 In the last three years, has your organisation been the subject of formal investigation by the Equality and Human Rights Commission or other equalities body (or similar organisation in an EU member state) on grounds of alleged unlawful discrimination?

Yes/No:


D4 If yes, what steps did you take in consequence of that finding?


D5 Is your policy on equal opportunities set out:

a) in instructions to those concerned with recruitment, training and promotion?

Yes/No:


b) in documents available to employees, recognised trade unions or other representative groups of employees?

Yes/No:

c) in recruitment advertisement or other literature?

Yes/No:


d) in service delivery guidance notes/procedures or your quality manual?

Yes/No:

E 	SUPPLIER STATEMENT

We certify that the information supplied is accurate to the best of our knowledge and that we accept the conditions and undertakings requested in the assessment. We understand that false information could result in our exclusion from the Tender process or the Approved Suppliers List at any time, even after initial inclusion. We also understand that it is a criminal offence to give or offer any gift or consideration whatsoever as an inducement or reward to any servant of a public body and that any such action will empower such body to cancel any contract currently in force and will result in exclusion from the Tender and / or the Approved Suppliers List.

Signed by: _____________________________________________________

Name: (in BLOCK LETTERS) ______________________________________

Title: _________________________________________________________

Date: _________________________________________________________

For and on behalf of: _____________________________________________

This form should be signed by a Director, Partner or other authorised signatory of the organisation and returned as part of the Tender Response


ANNEX D – SAMPLE EVENTS QUOTATIONS

The following two events are fictional, and the prospective tenderers are to provide quotations for running these.  When pricing, the cost should take into account the use of any NAM provided equipment but list by item, any additional equipment provided to fulfill the requirement for running the event.  Tenderers should provide a statement as to how the event will be delivered.

Event 1

The Museum is hosting an in-person event for 150 PAX seated in the atrium, NAM will provide all seating and the stage for speakers.  Detail of the event and equipment/services required from the supplier is as follows:

Start Time:  			18:30
Set-Up Access:   		15:30
Event Duration	 	1hr

Participants:			2
Format:			Interview

Speaker Mics:		Lapel
Roaming Handheld Mic: 	1

Backdrop required:		Yes

Presentation:			Yes, share powerpoint

Presentation screen:	Yes

PA System:			Yes

Comfort monitor:		N

Lighting:			Y

Livestream:			N

Live record:			Y			




Event 2

The Museum is hosting a hybrid conference, with an in-person attendance of 100 PAX and virtual attendance for a further 1 speaker and 50 PAX.  The in-person attendance will take place in Foyle Centre 1, NAM will provide all seating and the stage for speakers, the in-house lapel and roving mics can be used, and the supplier can also make use of the PA system and internal speakers in the Foyle centre if required.  Detail of the event and equipment/services required from the supplier is as follows:

Start Time:  			11:00
Set-Up Access:   		08:00
Event Duration:	 	6 hours
Event Breakdown:		11:00 – 11:15 Welcome Address (in person)
				11:15 – 12:30 Speaker 1 (in-person), plus Q&A
				12:30 – 13:00 Lunch
				13:00 – 14:15 Speaker 2 (virtual), plus Q&A
				14:15 – 14:45 Break
				14:45 – 16:00 Speaker 3 (in-person), plus Q&A
				16:00 – 16:45 Panel discussion (in person and virtual speaker)
				16:45 – 17:00 Closing remarks, event ends
				


Participants:			3
Format:			Lecture and Panel discussion

Speaker Mics:		Lapel (can use NAM equipment)
Roaming Handheld Mic: 	1 (can use NAM equipment)

Backdrop required:		No

Presentation:			Yes, share powerpoint

Presentation screen:	Yes

PA System:			Yes (can use NAM PA System if appropriate)

Comfort monitor:		N

Lighting:			N

Livestream:			N

Live record:			N	



ANNEX E – FLOORPLANS
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